
 CITY OF HAYS COMMISSION MEETING 
THURSDAY, JULY 14, 2016 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 
1. Call to order by Chairperson.

2. 2016 WATER $MART LANDSCAPE AWARDS: The 2016 Water $mart Landscape
Awards will be presented for residential property and business property in Hays.
(PAGE 1)

3. MINUTES: Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on
June 23, 2016. (PAGE 3)

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  (non-agenda items).

5. CONSENT AGENDA:  (Items to be approved by the Commission in one motion, unless
objections are raised).
Mayoral Appointment Recommendations: Hays Beautification Committee and Hays
Public Library Board (PAGE 7) 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

(No business to review) 

NEW BUSINESS 

6. REPORT OF JULY 4TH HOLIDAY ACTIVITY: A short report will be given about
incidents that occurred during the 4th of July holiday weekend. (PAGE 11)

7. DOWNTOWN PAVILION PROJECT: Provide a formal response in regard to the
Downtown Hays Development Corporation’s Pavilion request. (PAGE 13)

8. PAVEMENT CONDITION ASSESSMENT – CONTRACT: Consider authorizing the City
Manager to enter an agreement with MDS Technologies, Inc. for automated data
collection services regarding the pavement condition of streets throughout Hays and the
development of a 5-year repair and maintenance program, to be funded out of Special
Highway. (PAGE 39)

9. 2017 BUDGET PRESENTATION: The City Manager will present the proposed 2017
Budget for the City of Hays. (PAGE 73)

10. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER

11. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED)

13. ADJOURNMENT

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 





CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 2  MEETING DATE: 7-14-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
2016 Water $mart Landscape Awards 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
There is no formal action being requested.  
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The Hays Beautification Committee and the City of Hays implemented a new program called 
the Water $mart Landscape Awards in 2016. The principles of the program include Planning 
and Design, Low-water use plants, Practical Turf areas, Efficient Irrigation, Soil Amendment, 
Use of Proper mulch and Maintenance. Nominees must be within the city limits of Hays; 
landscape must be visible to the public and must be installed and established/maintained for 
one full year. There is one residential winner and one business winner per year. Nominations 
are reviewed and voted upon by the Hays Beautification Committee at the June meeting. The 
2016 residential winner is Eugene and Joann Fleharty and the business winner is the Hays 
Medical Center. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
 Jeff Boyle, Director of Parks 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
The Hays Beautification Committee recommends presenting the 2016 Water $mart 
Landscape award to Eugene and Joann Fleharty for residential property and the Hays 
Medical Center for the business property.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
 
 

1



2



MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 

HELD ON JUNE 23, 2016 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:  The Governing Body of the City of Hays, 

Kansas met in regular session on Thursday, June 23, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. 

Roll Call:  Present:  Eber Phelps 

   Shaun Musil 

   James Meier 

Henry Schwaller IV 

                                        Absent:  Lance Jones 

Chairperson Phelps declared a quorum was present and called the 

meeting to order. 

2. MINUTES: There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the 

regular session held on June 9, 2016; the minutes stand approved as presented. 

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENT: Finance Director, Kim Rupp, reviewed the financial 

summaries of the revenue and expenditure activities of the City of Hays for the 

month ended May 31, 2016.   

 Month-to-date general fund sales tax collections were at $611,927 which 

is an increase of $11,689 as compared to last year. That ends a four month slide 

in sales tax. Eight of the last twelve months experienced a notable decrease in 

sales tax receipts. Year-to-date general fund collections are at $2,960,302 down 

$117,404 or -3.81% as compared to this same time last year. 

The Finance/City Clerk’s Office invested $2,600,000 of maturing or 

renewing certificates with a weighted average interest rate of .66%. The portfolio 

of certificates of deposit on May 31, 2016 totaled $55,700,000 with a weighted 

average interest rate of .49%. Worth noting, that rate is up 26 basis points from a 

year ago. The total balance of the Money Market account on May 31, 2016 was 

$1,000,000 with a current yield of .20%. Total investments are up $1,300,000 

when compared to this time last year. 

3



Henry Schwaller IV moved, Shaun Musil seconded, that the Financial 

Statement for the month of May, 2016 be approved. 

Vote: Ayes: Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

   James Meier 

Henry Schwaller IV 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS: There were no comments. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: The following appointments were recommended at the 

June 9, 2016 City Commission meeting and are now being presented for 

approval. 

Airport Advisory Committee 

Don Benjamin – three-year term to expire April 30, 2019 (3rd term - 

nonconsecutive) 

Lyle Noordhoek – three-year term to expire April 30, 2019 (6th term) 

Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course Advisory Board 

Sharon Honeyman – three-year term to expire July 1, 2019 (1st term) 

 Shaun Musil moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, to approve the 

consent agenda as presented. 

Vote: Ayes: Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

   James Meier 

Henry Schwaller IV 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

6. COMMERCIAL INSURANCE RENEWAL – 2016/2017: The City’s 

Commercial Insurance Policy with BRIT Insurance will expire on July 1, 2016.  

Arthur J. Gallagher provides for critical insurance oversight for the City as the 

Insurance Broker.  Requested package quotes from seven carriers by Arthur J. 

Gallagher resulted in only one responsive and responsible bid from the 

incumbent in the amount of $196,220.  The outcome translates into a 4.9% 

4



increase or $9,197 more than the prior period. City staff recommends pursuing 

the 2016/2017 Commercial Insurance renewal with the incumbent insurance 

companies State National Insurance Company, Hartford, Old Republic, Hanover, 

and BCS as per the expiring policies. 

James Meier moved, Shaun Musil seconded, to authorize the City 

Manager to renew the 2016/2017 insurance coverages with the incumbent 

insurers for $196,220 to be funded from the Intergovernmental Insurance and 

Surety line item.  

Vote: Ayes: Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

   James Meier 

Henry Schwaller IV 

7. WATER CONSERVATION UPDATE: Jason Riegel, Water Conservation 

Specialist, gave a brief update on water conservation incentive and rebate 

programs for 2016. He reviewed the rebate programs for efficient washing 

machines, shower heads, toilets and urinals, as well as turf conversion for those 

who switch their grass to warm season varieties that require less water.  

8. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER: City Manager, Toby Dougherty, reported 

that the U.S. Department of Transportation awarded the Essential Air Service 

contract to SkyWest for Hays Regional Airport for the period August 1, 2016 to 

July 31, 2018. SkyWest is the current carrier and staff is pleased to see them 

retained as the carrier.  

 Mr. Dougherty updated the Commission on the status of the City’s change 

application for water use from the R-9 Ranch.  

 Mr. Dougherty also stated he met with County Administrator Phillip Smith-

Hanes regarding extraterritorial jurisdiction the city has for zoning. Ellis County 

Commissioners have expressed interest in reducing the three-mile extraterritorial 

zoning radius surrounding the city. Rather than reducing the entire radius by a 

set amount, officials have been drafting a proposal that reduces city jurisdiction in 

some places while protecting key areas for future growth. The proposed changes 

will be presented to the Hays Area Planning Commission for their input and will 

5



be brought to the City Commission for their consideration at a future work 

session. That input will be shared with the County Commission. 

 Building Codes enforcement outside the city limits in the county was also 

discussed. The county currently does not have building code regulations and has 

limited amount of construction. 

Mr. Dougherty stated it is in the city’s best interest to have building 

inspections outside of the city limits in our immediate growth areas. That insures 

that structures being built in that area are ready to be annexed in at a future date 

if the city grows into it. It may be efficient for the city to hire a part time position 

that the county could fund, and the employee could absorb other city duties.  

 The City Manager also briefed the Commissioners about the recent 

activity on a parcel on the northwest corner of the 157 Interchange. The property 

owner has been notified that if it is their intent to develop this property there is a 

process they need to follow. 

9. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS: Vice-Chairperson Musil 

commented he hopes people are smart with their fireworks, considerate of their 

neighbors, and enjoy the July 4th weekend.  

Chairperson Phelps hopes the agriculture community continues to have a 

successful harvest.  

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 

 

Submitted by: _______________________________________________  

    Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

6



CITY OF HAYS                
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 5  MEETING DATE: 7-14-16 
 

 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Mayoral Appointment Recommendations 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Receive Mayor Phelps’ proposed appointments to the Hays Beautification Committee and Hays Public 
Library Board. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The following proposed appointments will be presented for approval at the July 28, 2016 City Commission 
meeting. 
 
Hays Beautification Committee 
 
Andrew Doan – 3-year term to expire 8-1-19 (1st term) 
Carol Heiman – 3-year term to expire 8-1-19 (2nd term) 
Marcia Tacha – 3-year term to expire 8-1-19 (4th term) 
 
Hays Public Library Board 
 
Patti Park – 4-year term to expire 4-30-20 (1st term) (application to be provided at the meeting) 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Mayor Phelps 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Applications 

7



                  Form #006 

CITY OF HAYS  
APPLICATION FOR SERVING ON A CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE  

 
 
 
 
NAME:  _Andrew Doan__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ADDRESS:_6th street west 116 Suite 303________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DAY TIME PHONE NUMBER: 626-283-1974______________________  EVENING PHONE NUMBER: _626-2831974______________________ 
 
E-MAIL ADDRESS: andrewthedoan@yahoo.com_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT: _Student at Fort Hays State University_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN A RESIDENT OF HAYS? _I will be a resident starting on August 1st________________________________________________ 
 
NAME OF BOARD(S) YOU ARE INTERESTED IN SERVING ON: Hays Public Library Board, Hays Beauti�cation Committee__________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
HOW MUCH TIME COULD YOU DEVOTE PER MONTH? As much as needed. I can make time.________________________________________________ 
 
ARE YOU RELATED TO ANYONE WHO IS CURRENTLY SERVING ON A BOARD/COMMITTEE? No.____________ 

IF YES, EXPLAIN:___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BRIEFLY DESCRIBE WHY YOU ARE INTERESTED IN SERVING ON A BOARD/COMMITTEE FOR THE CITY 
OF HAYS. My hometown is Dodge City, Kansas. It was small, but community involvement �ourished. There, I volunteered for blood _________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
drives, adopt a highways, soup kitchens, etc. Volunteering is just fun. I want to show how much I appreciate the communities which___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
house me. In addition to that, this summer I had the pleasure of interning for Senator Roberts over in his D.C. o�ce. There, I learned ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
about the impact the national government has over the nation. Now, I want to learn about the community side while helping out.___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
PLEASE LIST ANY GROUPS OR ACTIVITIES THAT YOU PARTICIPATE IN, OR HAVE PREVIOUSLY 
PARTICIPATED IN, THAT DEMONSTRATE YOUR IN VOLVEMENT IN THE COMMUNITY. Community Orchestra________________ 
 
Hispanic American Leadership Organization (community volunteering), Phi Theta Kappa Honor Society (volunteering), Student ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Government Association (community event planning and implementation), Digital Dodge City (worked towards bringing digital___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
literacy to Dodge City), Dodge City Days Volunteer (this year)___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
SIGNATURE: Andrew Doan____________________________________________________  DATE: 7/5/16___________________________ 
 

Thank you for your interest in serving on a Board/Commission.  It is 
rewarding to see individuals who are willing and able to commit their time 
and energy to make the City of Hays a better place to work, live and play. 

8



9



CITY OF HAYS 
APPLICATION FOR SERVING ON A CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
Email: match@fhsu.edu  
 
Date: 6/20/2016  
 
Name: Marcia Tacha  
 
Address: 524 W. 16th St., P.O. Box 1325  
 
Day Time Phone Number: 785-628-4206  
 
Evening Phone Number: 785-650-7296  
 
Place of Employment: Fort Hays State University  
 
How long have you been a Resident of Hays: 5.5 years, but a resident of Ellis County 
since Sept. 2004.  
 
Name of Board(s) you are interested in serving on: Hays Beautification Committee  
 
How much time could you devote per month: 4 hours  
 
Are you related to anyone who is currently serving on a Board/Committee?: Yes  
 
If Yes, Explain: myself  
 
Briefly describe why you are interested in serving on a Board/Committee for the City of 
Hays: I have been a member of the Hays Beautification Committee for a few years and 
really enjoy it. I would appreciate being reappointed to this committee.  
 
Please list any groups or activities that you participate in, or have previously participated 
in, that demonstrates your involvement in the community: Hays Beautification 
Committee; Northwest Kansas Community Corrections Board; numerous FHSU 
Committees, including past and current president of the University Support Staff 
Senate.  
 

10



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 6  MEETING DATE: 7-14-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Report of July 4th Holiday Activity 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
N/A 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The public safety chiefs will provide a short report about incidents that occurred during the 4th 
of July holiday weekend.  
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Don Scheibler, Police Chief  
Gary Brown, Fire Chief 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 
 

 
 
 

11



12



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 7  MEETING DATE: 7-14-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Downtown Pavilion Project 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Request the Commission provide a formal response regarding the DHDC Pavilion request. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
At the May 5th Work Session, DHDC presented a pavilion/restroom project for Commission 
consideration.  The Commission further discussed the issue at the July 7th Work Session 
where staff was directed to place the item on the July 14th Meeting agenda.   
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Sara Bloom, DHDC Executive Director 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Project Information Provided by the Downtown Hays Development Corp. 
Map of Location 
4-11-16 and 5-5-16 Letters from DHDC  
Site Plans 
10-23-14 Letter from Union Pacific 
Union Pacific Lease  
3-11-16 Letter from City Attorney John Bird  
Information from Code of Ordinances 
 

 
 
 

13



Downtown Pavilion Project 
Presented by Downtown Hays Development Corporation (DHDC) and 
Fort Hays State University (FHSU) 

The following is a list of items DHDC would like the City of Hays to either provide financially 
or through in-kind labor if this project were to be approved by the City Commission. 

Union Pacific Lease 
DHDC requests that the City of Hays sign and enter the lease agreement with Union Pacific 
Railroad however, as stated in the legal document provided, DHDC agrees to pay the yearly 
lease. 

Public Restroom Facility 
Site prep and placement of restroom - In-kind labor equalling the amount of $800. Figure 
provided by Jeff Boyle, City of Hays Director of Parks Department. 

Placement of water and sewer lines and costs associated with them. The total for both sewer and 
water lines would run between $25-30,000. Figures provided by Johnny O’Connor, City of Hays 
Director of Utilities. Should the restroom be located further to the west, this cost could 
significantly decrease. 

Sidewalk 
By City Code, sidewalk will be required along the area developed, and to properly install 
sidewalk, curb & gutter should be constructed as well.  This would cost about $10,400.  
(sidewalk = 160’x5’=800SF @ $6/SF = $4800 + C&G = 160’@$35/LF = $5,600). All 
information and figures provided by John Braun, City of Hays Assistant Director of Public 
Works. 

Landscaping 
Planting of provided plants and trees - In-kind labor. No dollar figure provided. We assume the 
City of Hays would prefer control of the landscaping in order to best utilize water conservation 
methods. 

Installation of Aluminum fencing along tracks and east side of site - In-kind labor. A total dollar 
amount of $8,436 was provided by Jeff Boyle. This figure included materials and labor costs. We 
are unsure of the dollar breakdown but all materials would be provided by DHDC.

14



15



April 11, 2016

Toby Dougherty
City of Hays
PO Box 490
Hays, KS 67601

RE: Lease between the Union Pacific Railroad and the City of Hays

Dear Mr. Dougherty,

We are writing with reference to the letter we received from the City Attorney’s office regarding the proposed 
lease between the City of Hays and Union Pacific Railroad of property we will refer to hays the “pavilion 
property”. We acknowledge and understand the concerns that were brought forth but would appreciate the 
opportunity to address the concerns that were highlighted. 

1. In the unlikely situation that Union Pacific Railroad would demand the structure be torn down, Downtown 
Hays Development Corporation (DHDC) would assume the liability for deconstruction and removal of the 
Pavilion. The area in question is a small parcel of land with limited possibilities.  It is unlikely Union Pacific 
Railroad would decide it could utilize this piece of land. With that in mind DHDC has mitigated the risk and 
is comfortable.

2. Given the City of Hays leases other land sections along the rail corridor, it is our hope this issue has 
already been addressed in other instances. DHDC requests a copy of a lease between the City of Hays 
and Union Pacific Railroad so the wording can be duplicated. 

3. Per discussions between Aaron White, Ellis County Coalition for Economic Development Executive 
Director, and Union Pacific Railroad, the type of structure we are proposing will not be an issue. The 
original blueprints and Pavilion designs were presented to Union Pacific Railroad at the time of the request. 
Since the structure is more akin to a park shelter than it is to a commercial building they found no need to 
address the structure further. As such they provided a minimum lease for a site with improvements. Should 
changes in the design occur in the future and the building would become an enclosed, climate controlled, 
fully wired structure the lease would need to be reviewed and approval granted from Union Pacific 
Railroad. However, since the concept has not changed and we are still proposing an open structure, we do 
not anticipate any issues.

4. Please see section 2.

5. The 6 foot safety fence proposed in our design will extend from the railway north to 10th street isolating 
and screening the Pavilion from the rest of the property. With that design anything Union Pacific would 
authorize for use to the east has no impact to the Pavilion. Neither the City of Hays nor DHDC has any 
plans or designs for that property. Currently the ground is home to three grain elevators.   The fact that they 
have been unused for so long renders them unavailable for use as such. Due to the size, location and 
zoning of this property alternative uses are limited. It is our opinion that this third party element in this lease 
section was included to allow Union Pacific Railroad the potential to address the three grain elevators. We 
are aware that Union Pacific Railroad is investigating the cost to raze the structures.

Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to address your concerns. DHDC is appreciative of the time that has 
been committed to this project. 

Sincerely, 

Sara Bloom
Executive Director, DHDC

Sandy Jacobs
Board President, DHDC

16



April 11, 2016

Toby Dougherty
City of Hays
PO Box 490
Hays, KS 67601

RE: Lease between the Union Pacific Railroad and the City of Hays

Dear Mr. Dougherty,

We are writing with reference to the letter we received from the City Attorney’s office regarding the proposed 
lease between the City of Hays and Union Pacific Railroad of property we will refer to hays the “pavilion 
property”. We acknowledge and understand the concerns that were brought forth but would appreciate the 
opportunity to address the concerns that were highlighted. 

1. In the unlikely situation that Union Pacific Railroad would demand the structure be torn down, Downtown 
Hays Development Corporation (DHDC) would assume the liability for deconstruction and removal of the 
Pavilion. The area in question is a small parcel of land with limited possibilities.  It is unlikely Union Pacific 
Railroad would decide it could utilize this piece of land. With that in mind DHDC has mitigated the risk and 
is comfortable.

2. Given the City of Hays leases other land sections along the rail corridor, it is our hope this issue has 
already been addressed in other instances. DHDC requests a copy of a lease between the City of Hays 
and Union Pacific Railroad so the wording can be duplicated. 

3. Per discussions between Aaron White, Ellis County Coalition for Economic Development Executive 
Director, and Union Pacific Railroad, the type of structure we are proposing will not be an issue. The 
original blueprints and Pavilion designs were presented to Union Pacific Railroad at the time of the request. 
Since the structure is more akin to a park shelter than it is to a commercial building they found no need to 
address the structure further. As such they provided a minimum lease for a site with improvements. Should 
changes in the design occur in the future and the building would become an enclosed, climate controlled, 
fully wired structure the lease would need to be reviewed and approval granted from Union Pacific 
Railroad. However, since the concept has not changed and we are still proposing an open structure, we do 
not anticipate any issues.

4. Please see section 2.

5. The 6 foot safety fence proposed in our design will extend from the railway north to 10th street isolating 
and screening the Pavilion from the rest of the property. With that design anything Union Pacific would 
authorize for use to the east has no impact to the Pavilion. Neither the City of Hays nor DHDC has any 
plans or designs for that property. Currently the ground is home to three grain elevators.   The fact that they 
have been unused for so long renders them unavailable for use as such. Due to the size, location and 
zoning of this property alternative uses are limited. It is our opinion that this third party element in this lease 
section was included to allow Union Pacific Railroad the potential to address the three grain elevators. We 
are aware that Union Pacific Railroad is investigating the cost to raze the structures.

Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to address your concerns. DHDC is appreciative of the time that has 
been committed to this project. 

Sincerely, 

Sara Bloom
Executive Director, DHDC

Sandy Jacobs
Board President, DHDC

109 E 11th Street | Hays, KS 67601
785.621-4171 | DHDC@DowntownHays.com

www.DowntownHays.com17



18



19



20



21



May 5, 2016

City of Hays Commissioners

1507 Main Street

Hays, KS 67601

Honorable City Commissioners,

It is the intention of Downtown Hays Development Corporation (DHDC) to present jointly with Fort Hays State 

University on the Downtown Pavilion Project.

It is not our intention to ask for any action on the part of the City Commission.

The students who will be presenting this project have worked diligently throughout their spring semester to 

create an impressive addition to Downtown Hays. We feel we owe the class a venue at which to share their 

accomplishments. Having said that, we also realize the fiscal/budgetary challenges the city will face as they 

look to 2017.

With this in mind DHDC requests you enjoy the presentation and interact with the students in anyway you see 

fit but we are not asking you to take any action on the project or the fiscal notes that accompany it. This year 

may not be the right time for a project of this scale but that does not mean it has no future. We at DHDC feel 

strongly we need this facility, along with public restrooms, in Downtown Hays but we also know everything 

has its time. Should the commission determine the time is now or in the near future, we continue our 

commitment to collaboration and to fully funding the project.

Thank you for welcoming DHDC and FHSU to the May 5th work session. We all look forward to showing you 

a terrific project that could someday really benefit Downtown Hays. 

Thank you in advance for your understanding of this request.

Downtown Hays Development Corporation

Sara Bloom     Sandy Jacobs

Executive Director    Board President

109 E 11th Street | Hays, KS 67601

785.621-4171 | DHDC@DowntownHays.com

www.DowntownHays.com22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



Partners: Robert F. Glassman (1922-2005) 
John T. Bird, J. Curtis Brown, Todd D. Powell 

March 11,2016 

Copy sent via email to:sara@downtownhays.com 
Sarah Bloom 
Executive Director 
Downtown Hays Development Corp. 
2700 Vine 
Hays KS 67601 

RE: CITY OF HAYS - LEASE COVERING UNION PACIFIC PROPERTY 

Dear Sarah: 

I was provided a copy of the proposed Lease forwarded by Jeffrey D. Matt, Manager-Real Estate 
at Union Pacific Railroad. It is my understanding that Downtown Hays Development Corp. has 
been dealing with Union Pacific regarding a possible lease for the proposed Pavilion Project. I 
am required to approve any lease, as it would involve the City as Lessee. I cannot approve the 
Lease presented by Union Pacific for many reasons. For example: 

1.  The conditions placed on the City, as Lessee, are onerous and the lease is, essentially, a  
30-day termination lease, with the improvements remaining ours (See Section 13,  
Termination, B. regarding termination without cause.) What good would that be?  

2.  The Lease requires unrealistic insurance in light of the City'S immunity. (See Exhibit C -
Contract Insurance Requirements.)  

3.  The Lease provides that no alterations or improvements or installations may be made on  
the Premises without the prior consent of Lessor, while Article 1 of the document titled  
Lease Property, acknowledges the pavilion. The pavilion and everything incidental to it  
should be acknowledged and approved in the lease. (See Section 1 0, A.)  

4.  The Release and Indemnity provisions in Section 12 of the Lease are not in accord with  
City Ordinances. (See copy of Hays Municipal Code, Article XI. - City Contracts  
enclosed.)  

5.  In Section 2, B., Union Pacific reserves the right not only to permit a third-party to  
place advertising signs on the piece of ground, but also to grant to others the right to  
construct new or existing facilities on this tract. There are more conditions limiting what  
can and cannot be done on the property. It appears that Union Pacific could, in effect,  
thwart the City's use of the property by allowing others the right to intrude.  

Law Offices: P.O. Box 727 200 West 13 th Street Hays, Kansas 67601-0727 Tel (785) 625-6919 Fax (785) 625-2473 
email: jtbird@haysamerica.com 

35

mailto:jtbird@haysamerica.com
mailto:to:sara@downtownhays.com


Page 2 

It is my recommendation that if Downtown Hays Development Corp. feels that it can negotiate a 
better lease and wants to re-approach Union Pacific, that the proposed lease be for a term long 
enough to recoup the cost of the building and other improvements, that the lease not have 
provisions which are clearly prohibited by our ordinances regarding contract, and the it be for a 
reasonable annual rent. 

I would also recommend that DHDC do an investigation of the title and the boundaries, as it is 
possible that Union Pacific does not own the property, as was discovered in earlier situations 
where the City had been paying rent and there had been a reversion because of street 
abandonments. Of course you should not convey that information to Union Pacific as it thinks it 
owns all the land ever granted to it by the United States of America in the 1800's. 

If I can be of any further assistance, please let me know. 

, BROWN & POWELL, L.L.P. 

By-+__ __ ______ 

JTB/cam 
Enclosures 
c:  Toby Dougherty 

Jacob Wood 

36



_ Hays, KS Code of Ordinances Page 1 of2 

ARTICLE XI. - CITY CONTRACT912] 
Footnotes: 
--- (12) ---
Editor's note-Sections 1-5 of Ord. No. 3823, adopted Oct. 14, 2010, added provisions to the Code, but did not specify manner of inclusion. 
Therefore, at the discretion of the editor, said provisions have been included as Art. XI, §§ 2-576-2-580. 

Sec 2-576_- Required contractual provisions. 
Unless specifically waived in its request for bids or request for proposals, or included as alternate 

provisions to be bid or proposed, the City of Hays, Kansas, shall not award contracts nor let bids to 
individuals or entities unless the vendor, contractor or individual agrees to indemnify and hold the City 
of Hays, Kansas, harmless from any and all losses, damages or expenses of any kind arising out of any 
and all claims, demands, or causes of action initiated against the City of Hays, Kansas, by competing 
entities bidding on the project which is the subject of the contract. 

(Ord. No. 3823, § 1, 10-14-2010) 

Sec 2-577. - Prohibited contractual provisions. 
Unless specifically waived in its request for bids or request for proposals, or included as alternate 

provisions to be bid or proposed, the City of Hays, Kansas, shall not award contracts nor let bids to 
individuals or entities which attempt to do any of the following or include any of the following in the 
proposed contract: 

(1) Any diminishment of the common law or statutory standard of care, limitation of liability, or 
other attempt to reduce responsibility for mistake, error, or negligence of any type on the part 
of the vendor, contractor or individual. 

(2) Attempts to limit liability for breach of contract or negligent performance to the amount of the 
payment to the contractor by the city. 

(3) Attempt to claim ownership of intellectual property created during the performance of the 
contract with the city. 

(4) Arbitration agreements. 
(5) Provision for damages for breach by owner contrary to common law or statute including, but 

not limited to, any attempt to provide for attorney fees as part of recoverable damages. 
(6) Attempt to designate any forum or venue for resolution of disputes other than Ellis County 

District Court, Kansas. 
(7) Any other attempted reallocation of risk contrary to common law or statute. 
(8) Any attempt to eliminate the city's ability to collect consequential, exemplary or punitive 

damages, or any other measure of damages permitted by law, in an action against the vendor, 
contractor or individual for breach of contract. 

(Ord. No. 3823, § 2, 10-14-2010) 

Sec 2-578. - Prohibited acts. 

aboutblank 3/9/2016 37



._ KS Code of Ordinances Page 2 of2 

Unless specifically permitted to do so by the request for bids or request for proposals, no vendor, 
contractor or individual submitting proposals or bids to the City of Hays, Kansas, shall attempt to insert 
any of the contractual provisions prohibited by Section 2-577 into any contracts or agreements 
proposed to the City of Hays, Kansas. 

(Ord. No. 3823, § 3, 10-14-2010) 

Sec. 2·579. - Penalty for violation of article. 
Any vendor, contractor or individual who, without the express permission of the City Manager of 

the City of Hays, Kansas, proposes to enter into or enters into a contract with the City of Hays, Kansas, 
which omits any of the contract provisions required by Section 2-576 of this article or contains any of 
the contract provisions barred by Section 2-577 of this article, may be found by the City Manager of the 
City of Hays, Kansas, to be in violation of this article and vendors, contractors or individuals found to be 
in violation of this article may be barred from bidding on future contracts with the City of Hays, Kansas. 

(Ord. No. 3823, § 4, 10-14-2010) 

Sec. 2-580. - Conflict between article and contract. 
To the extent any contract entered into by or on behalf of the City of Hays, Kansas omits any of the 

contract provisions required by Section 2-576 of this article, the article will prevail and the required 
contract provisions will be read into the contract. To the extent any contract entered into by or on 
behalf of the City of Hays, Kansas contains any of the contract provisions barred by Section 2-577 of 
this article, the article will prevail and the offending provisions shall be null and void and shall be 
unenforceable as to the City of Hays, Kansas. 

(Ord . No. 3823, § 5,10-14-2010) 

aboutblank 3/9/2016 38



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 8  MEETING DATE: 7-14-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Pavement Condition Assessment – Contract  
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Authorize the City Manager to enter an agreement with MDS Technologies, Inc. for a lump 
sum fee of $25,950 to be funded out of Special Highway.   
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Staff has solicited proposals for automated data collection services regarding the pavement 
condition of streets throughout the City, and the development of a 5-year repair and 
maintenance program.  Proposals were received from two (2) firms, and staff recommends 
entering an agreement with MDS Technologies, Inc. of Park Ridge, IL for a lump sum amount 
of $25,950.  The 2016 budget included $50,000 for this project to be funded from Special 
Highway.     
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
 Greg Sund, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with MDS 
Technologies, Inc. for a lump sum fee of $25,950. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Pavement Management Assessment Agreement 
Proposal from MDS 

39



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works  
 
Work Session:   July 7, 2016  
 
Subject:  Pavement Condition Assessment – Contract  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Greg Sund, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
Staff has solicited proposals for automated data collection services regarding the 
pavement condition of streets throughout the City, and the development of a 5-year repair 
and maintenance program.  Proposals were received from two (2) firms.  Staff 
recommends entering into an agreement with MDS Technologies, Inc. of Park Ridge, IL 
for a lump sum amount of $25,950.  The 2016 budget included $50,000 for this project to 
be funded from the Special Highway Fund. 
  

Background  
In 2005, Public Works Staff began a comprehensive street maintenance program by 
preparing a 5-year Street Maintenance Program, and using that as a guide for several 
years of street maintenance activities.  In 2011, an automated pavement condition 
assessment was conducted by Infrastructure Management Services (IMS).  That 
assessment has been the basis for street maintenance activities over the last 5-years.  It is 
now time to have another pavement condition assessment performed as the basis for 
future street maintenance activities, and to determine whether past street maintenance has 
been sufficient to keep city streets at an acceptable level of repair. 
 

Discussion 
City Staff solicited proposals for professional services related to the automated collection 
of pavement condition data, importing that data into the City’s existing Infrastructure 
Management Software (Lucity), calculating a Pavement Condition Index for every street 
within the City, developing a 5-Year Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program Report, 
and presenting the results to the City Commission.  Proposals were received from two (2) 
firms and were reviewed by City Staff.   
 

• MDS Technologies, Inc. (Park Ridge, IL)  $25,950 
• Infrastructure Management Services (Tempe, AZ) $35,500 

 
Infrastructure Management Services (IMS) performed the survey in 2011, and while there 
would be some value in using the same firm to perform the survey, MDS Technologies 
presented a lower cost proposal, and references indicate that they do good work.  
Therefore, staff recommends entering into an agreement with MDS Technologies of Park 

40



Ridge, IL for a lump sum fee of $25,950 for services related to the assessment of 
pavement condition. 
 
Services include:  

• automated data collection,  
• uploading into the City’s infrastructure management software (Lucity),  
• delivery of a hard copy report of the findings and Pavement Condition Index 

(PCI), 
• Recommended rehabilitation activities and cost estimates 
• Visuals to include the top ten streets needing major rehabilitation or 

reconstruction.  
 
Pavement condition is determined by using vehicle based technology to capture 
pavement condition data with high resolution digital cameras, GPS receivers and on-
board computers.  The severity and extent of 39 pavement distresses such as cracking, 
potholes, patches, rutting, shoving, raveling, bumps, depressions, etc. is recorded and 
uploaded into computer software that calculates a PCI for each of the over 1400 road 
segments within the City. 
 
If awarded the contract, MDS has indicated that they would begin within two (2) weeks 
of the Notice to Proceed and complete the work within four (4) months, which would be 
by the end of November 2016. 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

 
Financial Consideration 

The 2016 Budget included $50,000 from Special Highway fund for this project.  The 
proposed amount for the contract with MDS is $25,950.  
 
That leaves $24,050 that can be used for additional street maintenance. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

• Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with MDS for the services 
defined for a lump sum fee of $25,950. 

• Provide alternate direction to City Staff. 
 

Recommendation 
City staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with 
MDS Technologies, Inc. for a lump sum fee of $25,950. 

 
Action Requested 

Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with MDS 
Technologies, Inc. for a lump sum fee of $25,950 to be funded out of Special Highway. 
 

Supporting Documentation 

41



Pavement Management Assessment Agreement 
Proposal from MDS 
 

42



43



44



45



  

 
 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment 
Services 

 
Prepared for: 
 
 

City of Hays 
Public Works Department 
 
 
 

 
Pavement Management Systems ● Right of Way Asset Management Systems ● GIS 

Geo-Referenced Digital Imagery 

 

Copy 

46



 

Pavement Management Systems ● Right of Way Asset Management Systems ● Mobile Mapping ● GIS 
350 S. Northwest Highway, Suite 300, Park Ridge, IL 60068 

Tel:  847.238.2802 ● Web:  www.mdstechnologies.com ● Fax:  847.656.5201 

 
 
June 13, 2016 

 
City of Hays 
Public Works Department 
1002 Vine Street 
Hays, KS 67601 
 
Attention:  Mr. John Braun 
  Assistant Director of Public Works 
   
 
Re:  Proposal to Provide a Pavement Condition Assessment Services 

Dear Sir: 

MDS Technologies, Inc. is pleased to submit this proposal to provide the above referenced services 
to the City of Hays.   We are uniquely qualified to provide these services to the City for these 
reasons: 

 We have expert knowledge and many years of experience implementing pavement 
management systems for municipalities and counties throughout the country; 

 We have successfully collected and loaded pavement condition data into the Lucity system to 
calculate PCI scores; 

 We have the vehicle based technology needed to assess the condition of the City’s road 
network quickly, accurately, and cost-effectively; 

 We have a reputation for providing high quality services delivered according to schedule for a 
very competitive fee. 

 
If any questions arise regarding our submission, please contact me for clarification at any time.  We 
look forward to working with City staff on this project. 

Sincerely, 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 

 

Trevor T. Triffo 
Principal 

47



 

Pavement Management Systems ● Right of Way Asset Management Systems ● Mobile Mapping ● GIS 
350 S. Northwest Highway, Suite 300, Park Ridge, IL 60068 

Tel:  847.238.2802 ● Web:  www.mdstechnologies.com ● Fax:  847.656.5201 

Table of Contents 

    

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................. 1 

2 COMPANY BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................ 1 

2.1 Business Philosophy .................................................................................................................................. 2 

2.2 Qualifications and Experience ................................................................................................................... 2 

2.3 Project Manager ........................................................................................................................................ 3 

2.4 Project Manager Role and Involvement .................................................................................................... 4 

3 RESPONSES TO FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENTS ................................................................... 5 

Task 1:  Initiate Project .......................................................................................................................................... 5 

Task 2:  Network Referencing ................................................................................................................................ 6 

Task 3:  Survey and Data Protocols ........................................................................................................................ 6 

Task 4:  Pavement Data Collection ......................................................................................................................... 6 

Task 5:  Data Processing and QA/QC ...................................................................................................................... 8 

Task 6:  Data Formatting and Loading .................................................................................................................... 9 

Task 7:  Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program Development ........................................................................... 9 

Task 8:  Deliver Report and Database ................................................................................................................... 10 

4 CLIENT REFERENCES ................................................................................................................. 11 

5 CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS ................................................................................. 16 

6 PROJECT SCHEDULE ................................................................................................................... 16 

7 COST QUOTATIONS .................................................................................................................... 17 

APPENDIX A:  RESUMES .................................................................................................................... 18 

APPENDIX B – SAMPLE AGREEMENT ........................................................................................... 22 

48



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 1 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

1 Executive Summary 

MDS Technologies, Inc. (MDST) specializes in implementing pavement management systems for 
municipal governments.  Our designated Project Manager has almost thirty years of experience 
assessing pavement condition and implementing pavement management systems.  He has 
successfully implemented the Lucity system for another municipal client. 
 
Our Project Manager will meet with City staff at the outset of the project to confirm the project 
scope and schedule.  He will also acquire the data needed to perform the field work from the 
City.  We will use our vehicle based technology to collect pavement condition data quickly, 
accurately, and inexpensively.  Prior to evaluating pavement condition, MDST’s Project Manager 
will work with City staff to develop a deeper understanding of the current configuration of the 
Lucity system, particularly with regard to the Pavement Condition Index (PCI) calculator. He will 
suggest any modifications that might be advantageous for the City to adopt. 
 
Upon completion of the pavement assessment, the condition data will be formatted for upload 
in the Lucity system and used to calculate a PCI for each road segment.  These scores will be 
used to develop a pavement rehabilitation program for the City.  The PCI scores and other 
pertinent data will be supplied to the City in the form of one or more electronic tables.  A map 
showing the location of the top ten segments requiring rehabilitation or reconstruction will be 
provided. 
 
We are typically able to hold a project initiation meeting within two weeks of receiving 
authorization to proceed with the project.  Fieldwork can be performed immediately thereafter 
and is expected to take about one week to complete.  The entire project can be completed 
within a four month time frame which easily meets the City’s goal of completing the project by 
the end of the calendar year. 

2 Company Background 

MDST specializes in implementing pavement and right of way asset management systems for 
the public works departments of county and municipal governments.  MDST staff has 
successfully implemented upward of one hundred pavement management systems for clients 
throughout the United States and Canada.   
 
We use vehicle-based technology to evaluate the condition of entire road networks quickly, 
accurately and systematically.   MDST provides services to implement pavement management 
software developed by third parties.  We have successfully implemented Lucity and other 
commercially available pavement management systems for many county and municipal 
governments around the country. 
 
MDST was incorporated in 2002 as a ‘C’ Corporation in the State of Illinois.  MDST is located in 
the metropolitan Chicago area and will provide services to the City from this location.   

49



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 2 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

2.1 Business Philosophy 

MDST’s mission is to be recognized by clients and industry peers as a top provider of pavement 
management data collection and pavement management system implementation services.  To 
achieve this objective, the company feels that it must excel in several key areas: 
 

 When planning our approach to a project, first and foremost we must consider the 
needs of our client and devise an approach to meet those needs; 

 The company must execute work effectively and provide quality services on time and on 
budget; 

 The company must keep abreast of emerging technologies and incorporate them into 
our practice when appropriate. 

Our goal is to provide high value services that exceed the expectations of our clients on every 
project that the company undertakes.  In any given year, at least 75% of our work is repeat 
business with existing clients. 

2.2 Qualifications and Experience 

MDST possesses considerable experience and expertise regarding implementation of pavement 
management systems.  This experience and expertise is highlighted below. 
 
Pavement Condition Evaluation – MDST staff have also evaluated pavement condition for tens 
of thousands of miles of pavements nationwide.  The severity and extent of distresses occurring 
on a wide variety of pavement types have been evaluated using a number of techniques 
including manual surveys, windshield surveys, key board surveys, and condition assessment 
from digital imagery.  

Development of Engineering Models for Pavement Management – A key part of implementing a 
pavement management system is modeling the behavior of the agency’s roads and decision 
process with regard to selection and prioritization of rehabilitation projects.  Although there are 
often similarities between agencies, every agency is unique in some way and this should be 
reflected in the models developed for the pavement management system.  This modeling 
component requires a thorough understanding of the detailed workings of pavement 
management software and engineering judgment that is developed through experience.  MDST 
staff has developed this expertise and judgment through twenty years of experience performing 
this task for county and municipal governments throughout the United States.   

Pavement Management System User Training – MDST staff has provided system administrator 
and user training as part of implementing pavement management systems.  Training is tailored 
to meet the needs and experience level of the agency and can range from navigating the user 
interface, viewing data, and creating standard reports to modifying engineering models, 
performing complex analysis, creating custom reports, adding new fields, and creating new 
functionality. 

Pavement Management System Linkage/Integration to GIS – Many of the systems implemented 
by MDST staff have been linked to GIS.  In some cases this has been done on a fixed segment 

50



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 3 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

basis, and in other cases routes have been created to take advantage of dynamic segmentation 
functionality in GIS. 

Integration of Inertial Navigation and Digital Imagery Technology – MDST staff were early 
pioneers to integrate inertial navigation and geo-referenced digital imaging technology into 
pavement oriented data collection vehicles.  This was done to provide accurate position and 
orientation data in the event of a GPS outage, provide roadway geometrics data such as radius 
of curvature and cross fall, and to provide a method of capturing spatially accurate right-of-way 
asset inventories. 

Development of Automated Crack Detection Technology – MDST staff have been involved in 
efforts to automate crack detection through pixel analysis of high resolution pavement imagery. 

Pavement Management Software Development – MDST staff has been responsible for the 
ongoing maintenance and development of pavement management software that was used by 
municipal and county governments throughout the country.  This includes prioritizing and 
performing bug fixes, and planning, designing, developing and distributing systems 
enhancements. 

2.3 Project Manager 

Mr. Trevor T. Triffo will function as MDST’s Project Manager for this project.  Mr. Triffo 
holds a Master of Science Degree in Civil Engineering specializing in pavement and geotechnical 
engineering.  He has worked in the pavement management field in roles of increasing 
responsibility over his twenty-eight year professional career and is a recognized leader in the 
industry.  He has participated in literally hundreds of pavement and right-of-way asset 
management system implementation projects as field engineer, data analyst, project manager, 
and principal in charge.  These projects have been located throughout the United States, 
Canada, and the Middle East.  Clients include municipal and county governments, metropolitan 
planning organizations, DOTs, and foreign governments.   
 
Mr. Triffo has worked hands-on evaluating pavement condition and has supervised large groups 
of people performing this task.  He has developed quality control procedures to maximize data 
quality and ensure that data delivered to clients is complete and accurately represents the 
conditions in the field.  
 
Mr. Triffo is currently functioning as Project Manager of pavement management implementation 
projects for the City of Nashua, NH, and the City of South Jordan, UT.  Also, he has recently 
functioned as Project Manager of successful pavement management implementation projects 
for: 
 

 City of Wheaton, IL 
 City of Boulder, CO 
 York County, SC  
 Summit County, CO 
 City of Moscow, ID 

 City and County of Honolulu, HI 
 Village of Mt. Prospect, IL 

51



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 4 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

 Village of Glen Ellyn, IL 
 Village of Bartlett, IL 
 Village of Wheeling, IL 
 Village of Bensenville, IL 
 Village of Carpentersville, IL 
 City of Carmel, IN  
 Chatham County, GA 
 Anderson County, SC 
 City of Orlando, FL 

 
Mr. Triffo has made numerous presentations to senior staff and elected officials of municipal 
and county governments to provide/summarize the results of pavement management studies.  
He has also conducted numerous training sessions to transfer knowledge to new and 
experienced users of pavement management applications.   A detailed resume for Mr. Triffo is 
provided in Appendix A.   
 

2.4 Project Manager Role and Involvement 

As Project Manager, Mr. Triffo will be intimately involved in all aspects of the work for the 
duration of the project.  Any work not done specifically by Mr. Triffo will be directly overseen, 
reviewed for quality, and ultimately approved for release to the City by Mr. Triffo.   
 
As MDST’s Project Manager of this project, Mr. Triffo will: 
 

 function as the project team’s point of contact for City staff; 

 implement a Project Communication Plan to facilitate effective communication between 
the City and MDST; 

 personally attend all project meetings at the City; 

 manage the activities of the MDST field crew; 

 oversee office based data capture/pavement condition assessment activities; 

 personally perform quality checks required as part of company standard operating 
procedures; 

 monitor the status of the project from a cost and schedule perspective and take action 
as required to keep the project on track. 

 

 

52



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 5 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

3 Responses to Functional Requirements 

The City wants to capture pavement condition data for the entire City maintained road network.  
This corresponds to roughly 120 centerline miles of roads, of which 54% have an AC surface, 
37% have a PCC surface, and 9% have a brick paver surface.  The consultant must provide all 
necessary field inspectors, vehicles, tools, and equipment required to perform the work. 
 
The pavement condition data must be collected in a sound, systematic, and reproducible 
manner to accurately reflect the condition of the road network and facilitate comparison 
between road segments.  This data must be loaded into the City’s Lucity pavement 
management system and used to calculate a PCI score for each segment.  A pavement 
maintenance and rehabilitation program must be created based on this data.  A hard copy 
report summarizing the finds of the project and a database containing the PCI scores and 
certain other data elements must also be provided. 
 
MDST has created a Task-driven Work Plan to meet the needs of the City in an expeditious and 
cost effective manner.  The main Tasks in the Work Plan are as follows: 
 

Task 1:  Initiate Project 
Task 2:  Network Referencing 
Task 3:  Survey and Data Protocols 
Task 4:  Pavement Data Collection  
Task 5:  Data Processing and QA/QC 
Task 6:  Data Formatting and Loading 
Task 7:  Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program Development 
Task 8:  Deliver Report and Database 
 

Each of these Tasks is discussed in detail below.  Optional approaches that the City might 
consider are also provided in this section. 

Task 1:  Initiate Project 

This task involves holding a project initiation meeting between MDST’s Project Manager and 
County staff, acquiring the data needed to perform field work, and mobilizing our data 
collection crew and equipment to the City. 
 
MDST’s Project Manager will meet with City staff at the outset of the project to review the 
project goals, scope and schedule, establish communication protocols, and discuss the pertinent 
technical and administrative details of the project.  These discussions will include the Lucity PCI 
calculation protocol, the handling of brick surfaced streets, previous condition surveys, the City’s 
history with pavement management, and the City’s pavement maintenance and rehabilitation 
policies. 
 
We will also acquire the necessary information to prepare for field activities.  The roads to be 
included in the project need to be identified.  The two main sources of this information are the GIS 
pavement centerline file and the existing Lucity database.  We will work with City staff to acquire this 

53



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 6 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

data in advance of the meeting.  If any questions arise about this data, MDST will seek clarification 
from City staff.   

Task 2:  Network Referencing 

In this Task we will confirm that all streets segments to be included in the system existing in 
the Lucity database and the GIS pavement centerline file.  The linkage between these two 
systems will also be evaluated and confirmed.  We understand that the existing Lucity database 
contains about 1,400 road segments. 

Task 3:  Survey and Data Protocols 

MDST will develop the data requirements for the City’s current version of Lucity.  MDST has 
performed this task for another municipal government that uses Lucity.  MDST can adjust the 
weightings assigned to each distress so that the calculated PCI matches the City’s expectations 
and approximates the PCI score that would result from the ASTM 6433 PCI model. 
 
Lucity uses a “predominant severity” approach in which the predominant severity level (i.e. low, 
moderate, or high) is identified for each type of distress that exists on a segment.  Then, an 
“extent range” (e.g. 0 to 4% of paved area, 4 to 10% of paved area, etc.) is assigned to each 
distress based on the total area affected by the distress at all three severity levels.   
 
This data is then used to calculate a numeric Pavement Condition Index (PCI) for a road 
segment.  This involves using a matrix to determine an appropriate deduct value from the 
maximum score of 100.  For example, if moderate severity Alligator Cracking occurs 
“Intermittently”, a deduct value of 25 can be assigned, resulting in a PCI score of 75. 
 
The PCI model in the Lucity system can be configured to match the ASTM model as closely as 
possible.  The advantage of this approach is that the road condition in the City of Hays can be 
compared to similar municipalities that use the ASTM model.  This approach also means that 
the City will not be tied to single firm for future surveys as the ASTM model is non-proprietary. 
 

Task 4:  Pavement Data Collection    

MDST will use our vehicle based approach to collect pavement condition data on approximately 
120 centerline mines (240 lane miles) of City maintained roads.  The approach used by MDST is 
specifically designed to provide consistent and accurate results for visual condition surveys of 
the type required by the Lucity system and ASTM D6433. 
 
Data Collection Technology: 
 
MDST proposes to utilize vehicle-based technology to capture the required pavement condition 
data quickly, safely, and cost-effectively.   The main components of the system are high 
resolution digital cameras, GPS receivers and related technology, and on-board computers.  A 
software application manages and coordinates the flow of digital imagery from the cameras and 
ties each frame to position and orientation data obtained from the GPS receiver.  

54



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 7 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

 
The digital cameras are precisely located and mounted to the 
roof of the data collection vehicle.  Two cameras are required 
for pavement condition evaluation.  A forward-looking 
camera captures a pavement-oriented view of the 
streetscape.  A downward-looking camera is used to capture 
detailed imagery of the pavement surface.  A third camera 
can be angled forward and to the right to capture imagery of 
assets such as traffic signs, sidewalks, storm drains, etc.  
 
MDST uses industrial grade cameras that are capable of outputting images up to 4 Megapixels 
in size at rates up to 15 frames per second.  Each frame is written to on-board, high-capacity 
hard disk drives in AVI or JPG format.  Images are typically captured at approximately 15 foot 
intervals to ensure complete coverage of the pavement surface. 
 
MDST uses a Trimble Ag132 GPS receiver to capture position and orientation data.  This data is 
corrected in real-time and typically positions the vehicle to within three feet of its actual location 
under open sky conditions.  Each frame/digital image is tied to position and orientation data so 
that it can be used to position objects visible in the imagery and mapped in GIS.   
 
Camera views can be displayed inside the vehicle and are constantly monitored by MDST field 
crews to confirm that high quality imagery is being captured at all times. 
 
Data Collection Procedures and Quality Control: 
 
MDST has developed standardized procedures that dictate how the data collection vehicle is to 
be configured and operated to maximize the consistency and quality of the data.  Some of 
these are: 
 

 Fieldwork does not proceed if the pavement surface is obscured by standing water or 
other substances/debris.  

 The sun must be sufficiently high off the horizon in order to collect quality imagery.  
This is because a certain amount of light is required to prevent under-exposure.  Also, 
images captured looking into the sun when it is too low on the horizon are subject to a 
“flash” effect that results in sub-standard images.  These problems are avoided by 
starting fieldwork at least one hour after sunrise and finishing at least one hour prior to 
sunset. 

 Camera settings such as aperture, shutter speed, and color parameters are reviewed 
and adjusted at the start of every day to reflect the current weather conditions.  Once 
initialized, the cameras continually self-correct to account for instantaneous changes in 
lighting conditions.   In addition, the vehicle operator can view the images as they are 
being captured and make any manual adjustments as required. 

 
We also have standard procedures to review the data on an on-going basis while the fieldwork 
is progressing.  Each image is tagged to spatial data that defines the location at which the 
image was obtained.  This data is forwarded to our office on a daily basis so that office based 

55



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 8 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

staff can monitor progress and confirm that all roads to be included in the system have digital 
imagery associated with them.  This is done by loading the spatial data into GIS and performing 
analysis to compare the image locations to the road network to be tested to determine if any 
roads have not been driven.   The result of this analysis is passed back to our field crew so that 
any roads that may have been missed initially are included in the fieldwork effort.  A thorough 
final review is performed at the end of the fieldwork before the vehicle is de-mobilized from the 
City. 

Task 5:  Data Processing and QA/QC 

Pavement condition will be assessed through analysis of the sequential digital imagery captured 
with the data collection vehicle.  Both the forward-looking streetscape view and the downward-
looking detailed pavement view will be used to assess the severity and extent of up to 20 
distresses for asphaltic concrete (AC) and 19 distresses for Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) 
surfaces.  We will discuss and confirm a method of handling brick surfaced roads with City staff.  
In the past we have used a modified version of the asphalt method that concentrated on the 
distresses that typically occur on brick surfaced roads – rutting, depression/distortion, bumps 
and sags, and patching. 
 
A sample image pair is shown below.  Because each frame is tied to positioning data acquired 
from GPS, the location of each image pair can be easily tied to a road segment. 
 
The severity of a distress is related to the width of cracking for cracking-type distresses and the 
degree of deviation from the plane of the original surface for distortion-type distresses.  For 
asphalt surfaced pavements, the extent of distress is determined by area (e.g. alligator 
cracking), length (e.g. longitudinal cracking), or occurrence (e.g. potholes) depending on the 
type of distress encountered.   For PCC surfaced pavements, extent is determined based on the 
number of slabs affected by a distress.  
 

 

56



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 9 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

Pavement Evaluation QA/QC: 
 
As part of our standard operating procedures, the condition of a random set of road segments 
is re-assessed.  The results of the two assessments are compared to each other to identify any 
significant differences.  The results are not expected to be identical, but should result in PCI 
scores within about five (5) points of each other.  Differences in PCI scores larger than this are 
reviewed in detail and any adjustments as to how distresses are quantified are made at that 
time.  If a systematic error is uncovered related to correctly identifying distress types (accuracy) 
in or identifying severity levels (resolution), then any previously evaluated segments are re-
evaluated to correct the problem. 
 
To minimize data input errors, MDST also performs certain integrity and logic checks on the 
input data to identify missing or erroneous data.  For example, if the extent of a particular 
distress is quantified on an area basis, then the sum of all the areas in a segment containing 
this distress cannot be greater than the total area of the segment. The data set must be 
reviewed and revised until every record passes this and other logic tests.  At that point the data 
set is considered ready for upload. 

Task 6:  Data Formatting and Loading 

The Lucity system has the capability to bulk import data.  MDST will provide upload files 
containing the pavement condition data in the required format so that the data can be imported 
into the Lucity database.  MDST will assist City staff in performing the upload.  Creating this 
upload file requires several steps as described below: 
 

 A new Inspection record must be created to house the new inspection data.  Since an 
Inspection occurs at a point in time, an inspection date must be assigned to each new 
Inspection.  In this case, the Inspection Date is the date that the data collection vehicle 
traveled the road and captured the digital imagery. 

 The type, severity, and extent of the observed distresses are loaded for each Inspection.    

 Once loaded, the Lucity system calculates a numeric Pavement Condition Index (PCI) 
score based on this data for each road segment.  This score can range from 100 (no 
distresses present) to zero (very heavily distressed). 

Task 7:  Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program Development 

MDST can create rehabilitation programs and analyze the effectiveness of various budget 
streams using the Lucity application.  Hays-specific pavement performance models can be 
developed if this has not been done already. 
 
A list of the rehabilitation activities (and associated unit costs) that are used on various types of 
roads at various stages of their life cycle is needed for this task.  We assume that this 
information can be provided by City staff.   

We expect that the creation of rehabilitation programs to be an iterative process in which first-
cut results are provided to City staff for review and comment.  The analysis can then be 

57



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 10 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

modified based on feedback from City staff.  We anticipate creating rehabilitation programs for 
four or five budget scenarios as part of the project. 

This work can be performed through remote access from our office.  We have successfully used 
this approach in the past with numerous other clients.   

An alternate approach involves identifying an appropriate treatment for each segment based on 
PCI ranges outside of the Lucity system.  In this approach, pavements are slotted into groups 
based on PCI scores.  In general, pavements with a PCI score below 55 are candidates for 
some form of rehabilitation (e.g. milling with fabric and overlay).  Pavements with PCI scores 
below 20 are typically candidates for reconstruction.  Pavements with a PCI score above 55 may 
be candidates for preventative maintenance (e.g. slurry seal).   
 
In our experience, however, these thresholds vary for each of our clients and depend somewhat 
on the City’s policies and practices.   These thresholds can also vary by traffic level/functional 
classification/strategic importance and by pavement type.  MDST will work with City staff 
through an interview process to understand the City’s decision making process in this regard.  
This logic will be used to generate the rehabilitation program.  The resulting document will be 
provided to the City in both hard copy and electronic format (i.e. Excel, Access, or other 
mutually agreeable format). 

Task 8:  Deliver Report and Database 

MDST will create a hard copy report after the above Tasks have been completed.  The report 
will describe the work performed and the present the major findings of the project.  The report 
will also include the PCI data for each segment.  Recommended rehabilitation activities and 
estimated costs for each segment will also be provided.  One (1) hard copy of the report will be 
provided.  An electronic copy of the report can also be provided in PDF format.  Additional hard 
copies can be provided at additional cost.   
 
After the PCI scores are calculated in Lucity, they can be exported from the system.  Other data 
such as Segment ID, street name, from/to descriptors, pavement length, width, functional 
classification, etc. can also be exported. 
 
This information will be loaded into data tables and will be provided to the City in a mutually 
agreeable format (e.g. Excel, Access).  These tables will include the data requested in the RFP 
as a minimum.  The exact structure and contents of the data tables will be determined in 
conjunction with City staff. 
 
A drawing showing the top ten streets needing major rehabilitation or reconstruction will be 
supplied to the City.  This drawing will be created using ArcMAP.  A SHP file or geo-database 
containing this information can also be supplied.  
 

 

58



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 11 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

4 Client References 

MDST has significant experience implementing pavement management systems for 
municipalities and evaluating pavement condition.  Project Profiles and contact information for 
some sample projects are provided below. 
 
Project:  Lucity Pavement Management System Implementation 
Client:    City of Wheaton, IL 
Timeframe:  2012, 2015/16 
 
MDST was retained in 2012 to implement a pavement management system developed by Lucity 
Systems for the City.  Wheaton is located in suburban Chicago and has a 135 mile road 
network.   
 
MDST used its vehicle based data collection technology to capture sequential digital images of 
the County’s road network.  MDST staff captured the severity and extent of various pavement 
distresses that were present on each road segment through a review of the digital imagery.  
This pavement condition data was uploaded into the pavement management database and a 
numeric pavement condition score was calculated for each segment. 
 
MDST modified the pavement condition model used by the Lucity system to better reflect the 
actual road conditions in the City and approximate the values that would be generated by the 
ASTM standard PCI model. 
 
Using historical construction/pavement rehabilitation data and the condition data for each road 
segment, MDST developed pavement deterioration models that are specific to the City of 
Wheaton.  Additional analysis was performed to estimate the impact that various budget 
scenarios would have on the overall condition of the City’s road network over the upcoming 10 
years.  A written report was created that summarized the work performed and the major finding 
of the study.  MDST staff provided support to senior staff as they prepared a presentation to 
City council. 
 
MDST was re-hired in 2015/16 to re-assess the condition of the City’s roads, load the data into 
Lucity, calculate PCI scores, update the budget analysis and provide a new report.     
    
Contact Info:  Mr. Sarang A. Lagvankar, P.E. 

Tel:  630.260.2067 
   E-mail: slagvankar@wheaton.il.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 12 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

Project:  Pavement Management System Implementation 
Client:    City of Boulder, CO 
Timeframe:  2007, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016    
 
This ongoing work involves collecting pavement condition data and to keep the City’s pavement 
management system up to date.  The City maintains approximately 360 centerline miles of 
roads with both AC and PCC surfaces.  MDST was originally hired in 2007 to implement the 
system for the City.  The initial project involved providing pavement condition data for the 
entire road network so that the database contained current data for all road segments.  The 
City was divided into three geographic areas with roughly equal road mileage for purposes of 
keeping the data current going forward.  The pavement condition data in one area is updated 
annually every year since 2009 so that the data for the entire City is updated on a three year 
cycle.   
 
MDST uses its vehicle based data collection technology to capture geo-located digital images of 
the City’s road network.  Using a specially designed software tool, MDST staff performs a 
‘virtual drive’ of these pavements in an office environment to capture the severity and extent of 
various pavement distresses that are present on each road segment.  This pavement condition 
data is uploaded into the pavement management database and a Pavement Condition Index 
(PCI) score is calculated for each segment.  MDST also provided training to City staff to 
manually perform PCI inspections.   
 
MDST also integrated the pavement 
management system to the City’s GIS.  
Through this linkage, the City can 
graphically display pavement condition 
and other data from the pavement 
management system thematically as 
shown in the adjacent image.  Each 
color represents a different pavement 
condition range (e.g.  Dark blue 
represents pavements with PCI scores 
ranging from 85 to 100, meaning these 
roads are in very good condition). 
 
Contact Info:  Mr. Rod Rindal, P.E. 
   Tel: 303.441.3266 
   E-mail:rindalr@bouldercolorado.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 13 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

Project:  Pavement Management System Implementation 
Client:  York County, SC 
Timeframe:  2014/15 
 
York County, SC is located adjacent to the North Carolina State Line and is a collar county to 
Charlotte, NC.  The County maintains approximately 460 centerline miles of paved roads.  MDST 
was retained to implement a pavement management system for the Public Works Department.  
MDST built a pavement management database based on data contained in the County’s GIS.  
MDST assessed the condition of the road network, uploaded the data into the pavement 
management database, and calculated PCI scores for each road segment.  The system was also 
linked to the County’s GIS so that pavement condition data can be thematically displayed in the 
County’s GIS. 
 
MDST also configured the system to generate multi-year pavement rehabilitation programs and 
perform funding impact analysis.  Training was provided to County staff so that they would 
have the knowledge and skills needed to maintain the system going forward.  We also provided 
digital imagery of each road linked to the County’s pavement centerline file.  This allows County 
staff to view the condition and other aspects of the County road network from the office. 
 
Contact Info:  Mr. Ryan Blancke, Transportation Manager 

Tel:  803-628-3199 
   E-mail: ryan.blancke@yorkcountygov.com 
 
 
Project:  Pavement Management System Implementation 
Client:    City of Moscow, ID 
Timeframe:  2013, 2015 
 
The City of Moscow, ID is located in western Idaho adjacent to the Washington State line.  The 
City maintains 83 centerline miles of both AC and PCC surfaced roads.  MDST implemented 
pavement management system to help staff manage the City’s road network.  The road 
network was segmented primarily on an intersection to intersection basis based on data 
acquired from the City’s GIS.  MDST assessed the condition of the road network and uploaded 
the data into the pavement management database. Pavement evaluation training was provided 
to City staff.  Software user training was also provided. 
 
MDST was retained in 2015 to configure the budget analysis module of the pavement 
management system so that City staff could use it to create multi-year rehabilitation programs 
and determine the effect that various pavement rehabilitation budget streams would have on 
the future condition of the City’s road network.  MDST worked in conjunction with City staff to 
configure the system to reflect the City’s pavement rehabilitation policies and practices.  Re-
inspection of the City’s roads is planned for 2016. 
 
Contact Info:  Mr. Kevin Lilly, P.E., City Engineer 

Tel:  208.883.7023 
   E-mail: klilly@ci.moscow.id.us 

61



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 14 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

Project:  Pavement Management System Implementation 
Client:   Summit County, CO 
Timeframe:  2012/13 
 
Summit County is located west of Denver on the continental divide and contains several 
municipalities including Breckenridge.  The County maintains 175 miles of AC, PCC, and gravel 
surfaced roads and multi-purpose recreation paths.  MDST was hired to perform pavement 
inspections on all these roads, load the data into the County’s pavement management system, 
and calculate PCI scores for each segment.  
 
MDST also provided geo-located digital imagery of the County’s roads.  A general streetscape 
view and an angled view designed to capture right of way assets such as traffic signs, guiderail, 
curb and gutter, sidewalk, drainage pads, mailboxes, and other items of interest were provided 
at approximately ten (10) foot intervals.  MDST provided a GIS point feature class file showing 
the location of the images.  Imagery at any location can be accessed quickly and easily by 
County staff through the use of the GIS Hyperlink tool.  An update of the pavement condition 
data and digital imagery is planned for 2016. 
 
Contact Info:  Mr. Eric Cottingham, Asset Manager   

Tel:  970-668-4199     
   E-mail: ericc@co.summit.co.us  
 
Project:  Pavement Management System Implementation 
Client:    Chatham County, GA 
Timeframe:  2009, 2011, 2013 
 
This project involved implementing a pavement management system for Chatham County, GA.  
Chatham County is located in southeast Georgia and contains the City of Savannah.  The 
County maintains approximately 325 centerline miles of roads. 
 
In the initial phase of the project, MDST built a pavement management database based on the 
County’s GIS pavement centerline file.  The pavement management database contained road 
segments that typically ran block to block.  The end points of segments were defined by the 
centerline of intersecting streets.   
 
MDST used its vehicle based data collection technology to capture sequential digital images of 
the County’s road network.  MDST staff captured the severity and extent of various pavement 
distresses that were present on each road segment through a review of the digital imagery.  
This pavement condition data was uploaded into the pavement management database and a 
Pavement Condition Index (PCI) score was calculated for each segment.  The pavement 
management system was linked to the City’s GIS so that pavement condition and other data 
can be displayed in a map format. 
 
Contact Info:  Mr. Marc Ginsberg   

Tel:  912-652-6867 
   E-mail: MBGinsbe@Chathamcounty.org 

62



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 15 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

Project:  Pavement Management System Implementation 
Client:  Village of Mount Prospect, IL 
Timeframe:  2011, 2016 
 
This project involved implementing a pavement management system for the Village of Mount 
Prospect, IL.  The Village maintains approximately 135 centerline miles of roads and alleys and 
is located in the suburban Chicago area.    
 
MDST built a pavement database that defined the Village’s road network as a number of road 
segments.  The segments typically ran block to block and the end points of segments were 
defined by the centerline of intersecting streets.  This was done to facilitate a linkage to GIS 
through a pavement centerline file provided by the Village.   
 
MDST collected geo-referenced digital imagery using vehicle based technology.  Using a 
specially designed software tool, MDST staff performed a ‘virtual drive’ of these pavements in 
an office environment and captured the severity and extent of various pavement distresses that 
were present on each road segment.  This pavement condition data was uploaded into the 
pavement management database and a Pavement Condition Index (PCI) score was calculated 
for each segment.  MDST installed the pavement management system on Village computers 
and provided user training to Village staff. 
 
Digital imagery in AVI format was linked to GIS so that Village staff can access imagery of 
interest simply by selecting the desired road segment using the Hyperlink tool. 
 
Contact Info:  Mr. Joel Michalik 

Tel:  847.870.5640 
   E-mail: jmichalik@mountprospect.org 
 
Project:  Pavement Management Training 
Client:  City and County of Honolulu, HI 
Timeframe:  2014 
 
In this project MDST provided in-depth training on the use of MicroPAVER for a large number of 
staff in the County of Honolulu Department of Facility Maintenance to use the MicroPAVER 
pavement management system.  The training was also attended by engineers from the Hawaii 
Department of Transportation.  The training sessions were typically attended by 15 to 20 
people. 
 
The training was provided over five (5) days and included all aspects of the MicroPAVER 
system.  This included: 
 

 A senior level overview of the system for director level staff and members of the mayor’s 
office; 

 A classroom review of pavement distresses that can occur AC and PCC surfaced 
pavements and how they are classified in the Pavement Condition Index model; 

 Field training on how to perform pavement evaluation; 

63



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 16 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

 Accessing and editing road segment data in MicroPAVER; 
 Adding new pavement inspection data and calculating PCI scores; 
 Creating pavement performance models within MicroPAVER; 
 Configuring MicroPAVER to reflect the City and County’s policies and practices regarding 

pavement rehabilitation; 

 Generating rehabilitation programs and performing budget analysis for a variety of 
budget scenarios and interpreting the results; 

 Linking the system to GIS; and, 

 Creating standard and user-defined reports including filtering and sorting data. 
 
Contact Info:  Ms. Cyndy Aylett    

Tel:  808-768-3475 
E-mail: caylett@honolulu.gov 

       

5 Contract Terms and Conditions 

MDST takes no exception to any of the terms or conditions in the RFP, except that we do not 
currently carry professional liability insurance.  Our practice is limited to implementing 
pavement management systems and related services.  We do not provide design or 
construction inspection or testing services so this type of insurance is not required.  Our other 
municipal and county government clients have not required this type of insurance for this 
reason. 
 
A sample agreement that we have used in the past is provided in Appendix B. 
 

6 Project Schedule 

MDST typically performs project of this size and complexity over roughly four (4) months.  If MDST is 
authorized to proceed with the project July 14, 2016, the project can be completed by November 14, 
2016 as desired by the City.  

The project initiation meeting can be performed within two (2) weeks of receiving authorization to 
proceed.  The field work would proceed with one week after this meeting and we anticipate that the 
field work will take approximately one (1) week to complete.   The pavement evaluation task is an 
office based task that will be initiated immediately after the field work is completed and is expected 
to take a maximum of two (2) months to complete.  The rehabilitation program, report, and 
database tables can be created after the pavement evaluation task is complete.  These tasks can be 
completed  over a three week time frame. 

64



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 17 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

7 Cost Quotations 

MDST is prepared to provide our services for an all-inclusive lump sum fee as shown in the 
table below.  A lump sum contract relieves the City of any risk related to cost overruns. MDST 
will submit an invoice to the City upon completion of the field work and on a monthly basis 
thereafter.  Invoiced amounts will be pro-rated based on percent complete by Task. Payment 
terms are Net Thirty (30) days.  These fees are is valid for one hundred and twenty (120) days. 

 
 

Project Fee Schedule 
 

Task Fee 

  
  
Project Initiation and Prepare for Field Work $1,950 
Network Referencing $850 
Survey and Data Protocols $450 
Pavement Data Collection $7,750 
Data Processing and QA/QC $8,750 
Data Formatting and Loading $1,450 
Maint. and Rehab. Program Development $2,400 
Deliver Report and Database $2,350 
  

Total: $25,950 

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 18 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A:  Resumes 

66



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 19 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

Trevor T. Triffo 
Principal, MDS Technologies, Inc. 

 
Introduction 
 
Mr. Triffo is Principal of MDST Technologies, Inc.  In this position, Mr. Triffo is responsible for all 
aspects of company operations.  Mr. Triffo has spent his twenty eight year career in the 
pavement and transportation infrastructure asset management industry.  He has participated in 
several hundred initial implementation and data update projects for clients at the municipal, 
county, regional, and state level throughout the United States and Canada.  On these projects, 
he has functioned in a variety of positions including Project Engineer, Project Manager, and 
Principal in Charge.  Mr. Triffo has also functioned as co-Project Manager of a comprehensive 
infrastructure asset management system for the State of Kuwait. 
 

Pavement Inventory and Condition Assessment Experience 
 
Mr. Triffo has designed, participated in, and supervised data collection programs for numerous 
agencies ranging from small municipalities to state DOTs.  Mr. Triffo has extensive experience 
with a variety data collection technologies and techniques. 
 

 Automated Condition Data Collection – Mr. Triffo has been involved in over 200 projects in 
which non-contact technology was used to acquire pavement roughness, and wheel track 
rutting.  A significant percentage of these projects also required collection of automated 
geometric information such as grade, cross-fall, and radius of curvature.  This data was 
collected using a combination of laser cameras, accelerometers, inclinometers, and rate 
gyroscopes. 

 Surface Distress Surveys – Mr. Triffo has been involved in roughly an equal number of 
projects that involved collection of surface distress data.  Mr. Triffo is very familiar with 
numerous ways to collect this data including manual methods and semi-automated 
(windshield) methods.  Mr. Triffo has also been involved in research efforts to develop a 
totally automated optical crack detection system that utilized high resolution digital 
cameras, a strobe lighting system, and a parallel process computing system to perform pixel 
analysis/crack detection in real time. 

 Non-Destructive Deflection Testing – Mr. Triffo is intimately familiar with non-destructive 
deflection (NDT) testing of pavements.  Mr. Triffo has analyzed deflection data acquired by 
a Dynaflect device and Falling Weight Deflectometer (FWD) on thousands of miles of 
pavements of all types and in all areas of the United States and Canada. 

 

Mr. Triffo is trained as an engineer and with an emphasis in soils, materials, and pavements.  
His Master’s research Thesis involved the study of concrete pavement deterioration due to 
exposure to freeze/thaw cycles.  The combination of Mr. Triffo’s academic training and practical 
experience put him in a very strong position to understand an Agency’s unique pavement issues 
and address them in the pavement management application. 

67



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 20 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

 

Pavement Management System Implementation Experience 

 

The vast majority of the data collection projects mentioned above involved loading data and/or 
implementation of a pavement management system for client Agencies.  Mr. Triffo has vast 
experience with all aspects of system implementation including: 

 Agency needs analysis to determine the required functionality of the system; 

 Design of appropriate data collection programs that meet the technical needs and budget 
constraints of the agency; 

 Design and implementation of appropriate quality control plans to ensure data integrity; 

 Development of Agency specific models so that the output of the system reflects the 
Agency’s unique combination of conditions, policies, and practices; and 

 Training of Agency staff on field data collection, principals of pavement management, and 
use of the selected system so that the Agency does not need to rely on outside sources to 
maintain the system. 

 Design interfaces between the pavement management application and other systems such 
as GIS and Work/Maintenance Management. 

 Presentation to senior staff and/or elected officials to communicate findings, conclusions, 
and recommendations resulting from implementation of the system. 

 

System Design and Development 

 

Mr. Triffo has successfully led the design and development of pavement management 
applications for the private and public sector.  For the public sector, systems were designed to 
meet the specific needs of municipalities, counties, and DOT agencies.  

Mr. Triffo also designed and managed the development of a comprehensive right of way asset 
management system.  This system utilized a generalized analytical engine that enabled users to 
inventory and assess the condition of a wide range of infrastructure assets.  The types of assets 
that can be accommodated by this system are signs and supports, sidewalks, curb and gutter, 
pavement markings, sound and retaining walls, traffic signals, lighting systems, drainage inlets 
and manholes, fire hydrants, underground utilities such as storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and 
water distribution networks. 

 

68



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 21 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

Work History 
 
MDS Technologies, Inc.    Park Ridge (Chicago), IL 
Founder/Principal     June 2003 to Present 
 
IMS Infrastructure Management Services, Inc. Arlington Heights (Chicago), IL 
Senior Vice President      January 1998 to June 2003 
 
Stantec, Inc.      Cambridge, ON, Canada 
Manager, Implementation Department  1989 to December 1997 
 
Shiplake Management, Ltd.    Toronto, ON, Canada 
Construction Engineer     1988 to 1989 
 
Trow Geotechnical, Ltd.    Brampton, ON, Canada 
Pavement Engineer     1987 to 1988 
 
Pavement Management Systems, Ltd.  Cambridge, ON, Canada 
Data Analyst      1986 to 1987 
 
 

Education 
 
York University     1989- 1992   
Toronto, ON, Canada 
Coursework toward MBA 
 
University of Manitoba    1984 - 1987 
Winnipeg, MB, Canada 
M.Sc. Civil Engineering (Geotechnical/Pavements) 
 
University of Manitoba    1980 - 1984 
Winnipeg, MB, Canada 
B.Sc. Civil Engineering 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

69



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 22 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B – Sample Agreement 

70



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 23 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is made this         day of                    , 2011, by and between 
the ____________, an Illinois municipal Corporation hereinafter referred to as (the 
"City") and MDS Technologies, Inc., an Illinois Corporation, hereinafter referred to as 
(“MDST"). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein 
and for the purposes set forth above, it is hereby agreed to as follows: 
 
 MDST agrees to perform services as described in the proposal dated 
____________ from MDST, which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and incorporated 
herein as a part of this Agreement.   
 

The City shall pay MDST the contract sum of ____________________  Dollars 
and ______ cents ($xx,xxx.xx) for the services to be provided under this Agreement as 
detailed in the Exhibit A.   
 

MDST shall invoice the City on a monthly basis.  Invoiced amounts shall be pro-rated 
based on the percent of the above tasks completed.   
 
This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and may not be 
modified without the written approval of both parties. 
 
The City shall have the ability to terminate this Agreement for any reason in its sole and 
absolute discretion at any time after execution. Upon written notice of termination by 
the City, MDST shall cease all work being performed. Upon termination and subject to 
MDST not otherwise being in breach of its obligations under this Agreement, MDST shall 
be entitled to compensation for all services rendered up to the point of termination and 
the reimbursement of any incurred expenses up to the point of termination. 
 
To the fullest extent permitted by Illinois law, MDST shall indemnify, defend and save 
harmless the City, its officers, agents, employees, representatives and assigns, from 
lawsuits, actions, costs (including attorneys' fees), claims or liabilities of any character 
as allowed by law, brought because of any injuries or damages received or sustained by 
any person, persons, or property on account of any act or omission, neglect or 
misconduct of MDST, its officers, agents and/or employees arising out of MDST’s work 
and services performed under this Agreement, including any claims or amounts 
recovered for any infringements of patent, trademark or copyright. 
 
MDST shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement insurance against 
claims for personal injuries or death to persons or damage to property that may arise 

71

johnbraun
Line

johnbraun
Line



Mr. John Braun 
City of Hays, Assistant Director of Public Works 
Proposal to Provide Pavement Condition Assessment Services Page 24 

 

MDS Technologies, Inc. 
Mobile Data Solutions 

from or in connection with the performance of the work and services hereunder by 
MDST, its agents, representatives, or employees.  MDST shall furnish the City with 
certificates of insurance naming the City and its officers, officials, trustees, agents, 
representatives, volunteers, and employees as additional insureds on a primary and 
non-contributory basis.  MDST’s insurance required under this Agreement shall be 
primary coverage in all respects.  Any insurance maintained or self-insurance 
maintained by the City or its agents shall be in excess of MDST’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it.  Unless otherwise required by the City, MDST shall maintain no less 
than the following coverages: 

 
General Liability Coverage:  $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; 
 
Automobile Liability Coverage:  $100,000 combined single limit per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage; 
 
Workers Compensation and Employer’s Liability Coverage:  Workers’ Compensation 
limits as required by State statute and Employer’s Liability limits of $500,000 per 
accident; 
 
Excess Liability Coverage:  $1,000,0000 per occurrence and in the aggregate.   

   
In the performance of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, MDST shall comply 
with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local law.  
 
MDST shall coordinate all work under this Agreement with the City’s designated Project 
Manager. 
 
 
MDS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.     CITY 
 
 
By:_________________________    By:________________________ 
 Trevor T. Triffo        
 Principal  
        
Date:_______________________    Date:_______________________ 
  
 

72

johnbraun
Line

johnbraun
Line



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 9  MEETING DATE: 7-14-16 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
2017 Budget Presentation 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
City Manager Toby Dougherty will present the proposed 2017 Budget for the City of Hays. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
N/A 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 
 

 
 
 

73


	7-14-16 City Commission Meeting Agenda
	2016 Water Smart Awards
	6-23-16 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	Mayoral Appointment Recommendations
	July 4th Holiday
	Downtown Pavilion Project
	Pavement Condition Assessment
	2017 Budget Presentation



